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MFCs at Kannur, Rampurhaat and Mysuru due to non-
payment of lease-rent and other dues by sub-lessee. The
process for sub leasing the MFC at Rampurhaat has been
restarted whereas the petition has been filed by sub
lessees against the termination of sub lease agreements of
MFCs at Kannur and Mysuru before the respective High
Courts.

Your Company is providing Project Management
Consultancy (PMC) services to Ministry of External Affairs
(MEA) in two major projects.

Firstly, the Construction of Two-Lane Road on NH
Specifications from Paletwa to India-Myanmar Border
(Zorinpui) from km 0.00 to km 109.2 in Chin State of
Myanmar having construction cost of Rs. 1518 crores. The
Project Management Consultancy agreement for the same
was signed on 09.03.2017.

Secondly, the Construction of 69 Bridges including
Approach Road on Tamu-Kyigone-Kalewa (TKK) section of
the Trilateral Highway in Myanmar having construction
cost of Rs. 293.93 crores. The Project Management
Consultancy agreement for the same was signed on
26.10.2017.

During the year your Company has secured four projects in
India of total value amounting to Rs 419.96 Crore, major of
which are for providing Project Management Consultancy
service for Setting up a Multi Model Logistics Park at
Bhaupur, Kanpur (U.P) for CONCOR, awarded on
11.06.2018 having estimated cost of the project of
Rs.108.36 crores approx. and for providing Project
Management Consultancy service for Setting up a Multi
Model Logistics Park at Dahej, Gujarat for CONCOR,
awarded on 03.09.2018 having estimated cost of the
project of Rs. 201 crores approx.

Your Company has also secured new projects of Project
Management Consultancy for Construction of
Infrastructure works at National Disaster Response Force
(NDRF) Academy, Nagpur, awarded on 24.01.2019 having
total cost of the Project of Rs 74.34 Crore approx. and
Project Management Consultancy for replacement of CST -
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9 Sleepers with PRC Sleepers of MGR System of Stage-1
at National Thermal Power Corporation (NTPC) Unchahar,
Uttar Pradesh, awarded on 26.07.2018 having estimated
cost of the project of Rs. 34.19 crores approx..

Apart from the new projects received during the year, your
company is also providing Project management
consultancy inrespect of six projectsin India.

Your Company is providing Project Management
Consultancy for establishment of Shri Vishwakarma Skill
University (SVSU) at Dudhola, Palwal, Haryana. The
agreement for the same was signed on 22.01.2018 and
the estimated value of the project is approx. Rs. 425
crores. The work has commenced on 18.10.2018 and is
scheduled to be completed by January-2020.

Your Company is also providing a Project Management
Consultancy for construction of new State-of-Art Building
of Department of Science & Technology at Technology
Bhawan, New Mehrauli Road, New Delhi. The agreement
for the same was signed on 10.11.2017 and the estimated
project cost is approx. Rs. 192 crores. The work has
commenced on 31.08.2018 and is scheduled to be
completed by September-2021.

Your Company is also providing Project Management
Consultancy service for construction of Barrack
accommodation for security personnel at 07 Land Ports by
Land Ports Authority of India (LPAI) having total project
cost of approx. Rs. 197.64 crores.

Your company is also providing Project Management
Consultancy service for construction of Multi Modal
Logistic Park (MMLP) at Paradip (Odisha) and near
Kadakola station, Mysuru District, Karnataka awarded by
Container Corporation of India Ltd. (CONCOR) having
estimated cost of Rs 66.88 crores and Rs 93 Crore
respectively.

Your company has also been appointed as Project
Management Consultant for construction of two
Navodaya Vidyalaya at JNV, Agar Malwa (Madhya
Pradesh) and Sabarkantha (Gujarat) for Navodaya
Vidyalaya Samiti (an autonomous organization under
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Ministry of HRD). The agreements for both the projects
were signed on 14.09.2017 and the estimated project cost
is approx. Rs. 25.09 crores and Rs. 18.06 crores,
respectively.

After the closure of the financial year 2018-19, your
Company has secured a new project of Project
Management Consultancy for Detailed Engineering &
Project Supervision for Development of handling facilities
for M/s IFFCO at MMLP Paradip Port Odisha awarded by
CONCOR India Limited, on 08.05.2019. The total cost of
projectis Rs 98.50 Crore.

Corporate Governance, CSR and Sustainability

Your Company is committed to good corporate governance
and compliance with the requirement of corporate
governance under the DPE Corporate Governance
Guidelines and all other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
and ensure transparency while conducting the business in
an ethical manner. A separate section on corporate
governance furnishing applicable details forms part of the
Directors’ Report. During the year your Company has spent
an amount of Rs 14.60 Lakh towards Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) initiative. The CSR initiatives, aimed
at conducting business in a sustainable manner, broadly

-10th Annual Report | 2018-19

compromise of activities in the field of Education, Health,
Sanitation etc. A separate section on Corporate social
responsibility furnishing required details forms part of the
Directors’ Report.
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Distinguished Shareholders of IrconISL,

The Directors of your Company have pleasure in presenting the 10" Annual Report of the affairs of the Company for the
financial year 2018-19.

1.
A.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE | HIGHLIGHTS
Financial Performance:

During the financial year 2018-19, your Company has recorded a total operating income of Rs 70.64 crore,
registering 118.26 % increase over previous year’s operating income of Rs 32.36 crore. The increase in total
operating income is majorly due to the execution of consultancy projects.

The Company has achieved Profit Before Tax of Rs 17.20. The Profit After Tax has increased to Rs 14.03 Crore over
the Previous year of Rs 13.65 Crore.

The Earning Per Share for the financial year 2018-19 have increased to Rs 2.16 as compared to Rs 2.10 in the
previous year. The increase has been on account of increase in profit after tax.

The net worth of the Company as on 31st March, 2019is Rs 142.38 Crore.
Financial Performance Indicators:

Some important indicators of financial performance of the Company for the year 2018-19 vis —a — vis 2017-18 are
given below:

©|® N | o &L

—
=

C.

Authorized Share Capital 65.00 65.00
Subscribed & Paid-up Share Capital 65.00 65.00
Reserves & Surplus 17.38 63.35
Capital Work-in-progress 2.23 2.17
Total Revenue 16.42 39.12
Revenue from Operations 70.64 32.36
Profit before tax 17.20 18.11
Profit after tax 14.03 13.65
Net worth 142.38 128.35
Earnings Per Share (Rs.) 2.16 2.10
Transfer to Reserve
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holding company for the year 2019-20 in Inter Ministerial Committee Meeting held on 22nd April 2019 as the annual
turnover of Revenue of Operation for financial year 2017-18 of the company was Rs 32.36 crore which is very less.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

On the cessation of Mr. Hitesh Khanna (DIN 02789681) and Mr. A.K Gupta (DIN 07263307) from the directorship of
the company w.e.f. 28.03.2018 and 25.01.2018 respectively, the following Directors are appointed during the
Financial Year 2018-19.

1 Mr. Parag Verma (DIN 05272169) From05.04.2018 onwards
2 | Mr.M.K.Singh (DIN06607392) From 10.04.2018 onwards
The details of Directors holding office as on date of this report are as follows:
1 Mr. A.K. Goyal (DIN 05308809) From01.12.2013 onwards
2 | Mr.Surajit Dutta (DIN 06687032) From01.09.2013 onwards
3 | Mr.ParagVerma(DIN 05272169) From 05.04.2018 onwards
4 | Mr.M.K. Singh (DIN 06607392) From 10.04.2018 onwards

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of Companies Act 2013, which came into effect from 1st April 2014, the
company has appointed 3 Key Managerial Personnel.

The details of Key Managerial Personnel appointed during the Financial Year 2018-19 and holding office as on date
of thisreportis as follows:

1 Mr. Rana Pratap Singh Chief Executive Officer | From01.02.2019 onwards

2 | Ms.PoojaChaurasia Chief Financial Officer From25.01.2019 onwards

3 | Ms.Manisha Gola Company Secretary From 28.11.2018 onwards

The following Key Managerial Personnel ceased to hold office during the financial year 2018-19:
1 Mr. C.K Nayar (as Chief Executive Officer) w.e.f.30.01.2019

2 | Mr.Aniket Khetrapal (as Chief Financial Officer) w.e.f.25.01.2019

3 | Ms.Deepshikha Gupta (as Company Secretary) w.e.f.31.05.2018

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has the following Committees of the Board:
1. Audit Committee

2. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee
3.  Nomination & Remuneration Committee

The details pertaining to composition of Audit Committee, CSR Committee & Nomination and Remuneration
Committee are included in the Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of this report and attached as
Annexure-C

MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
During 1st April 2018 to 31st March 2019, five meetings of the Board of Directors and Audit Committee were held,
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one meeting in quarter ended June 2018, one meeting in quarter ended September 2018, one meeting in quarter
ended December 2018 and two meeting in quarter ended March 2019.

The details of meetings of the Board of Directors and Audit Committee and other Board Level Committee are
furnishedin Corporate Governance Report attached as Annexure-C.

7. INTERNALCONTROL SYSTEM AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Details of the internal control system and risk management are provided in the Management Discussion and Analysis
Report.

8. PERSONNELDEVELOPMENT

Cordial and harmonious industrial relations prevailed in the Company during the year. As on 31st March 2019, the
total manpower strength stood at 78 which included 3 contract employees working for Malaysia project and 1
contract employee working for Algeria project of Ircon International Limited (Ircon).

Matters related to personnel development of employees on deputation from Ircon International Limited, are being
taken care of by Ircon International Limited, the holding Company.

Those who have been engaged by the Company, and those who are posted on contract for Ircon’s Malaysia and
Algeria Projects are taken care by your Company.

9. INFORMATIONTECHNOLOGY

The Company has its website on domain http://www.irconisl.com, which provides profile of the Company,
Projects, Annual reports, tenders, contact details, etc. During the year, updates were made regarding, appointment
of new directors and Key Managerial Personnel, projects, annual reports, tenders, RTI, contact details, etc. The
wehbsite also has a link on the holding company’s website www.ircon.org.

10. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND UPGRADATION, CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, R&D, ETC.

The focus on environment continued with the same vigor and the targets for the year were achieved fully by
incorporating the feasible elements of the green building in the constructed MFCs.

11. OTHERDISCLOSURES
A. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or investment:

During the year the company has not taken any loan. No Investments were made and no loans or guarantees
have been granted by the Company.

B. Disclosure onremuneration of directors and employees:

As per the provision of section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rule 5 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the company is required to disclose
the details of the remuneration of the Directors etc. in the Directors’ Report”. However as per Notification No.
GSR463(E) dated 5th June, 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government Companies are
exempted from complying with provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013. IrconlISL being a
government company, such particulars are not included as part of Directors’ Report.
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C. Compliance with Secretarial Standards on Board Meetings and General Meetings:
During the year, the Company is generally in compliance with the Secretarial Standards on Meetings of the
Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India,
except as otherwise stated in the Secretarial Audit Report.

D. Deposits:
The Company did not hold any public deposits at the beginning of the year nor has it accepted any public
deposits during the year.

E. Significant material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going
concern status and Company’s Operations in future:
No order has passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going concern status of the
Company and its operations in future.

F. Material Changes and commitments affecting the financial position between end of the financial
year and the date of the report:
No Material Changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company between end of the
financial year 2018-19 and date of the report.

G. Changeinthe nature of the Business.
There was no change in the nature of the business of the Company during the financial year 2018-19.

H. Qualification, reservation or adverse remarks in the Auditor's Report.
There are no Qualification, reservation or adverse remarks in the Auditor’s Report for the financial year 2018-
19.

. Accounting standards followed by the company
The Financial Statements of the Company as at and for the financial year ended 31st March 2018 have been
prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards(Ind-AS) notified under section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and applicable provisions of Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules 2016.

INTEGRALREPORTS

The Following reports/documents along with relevant annexures form an integral part of this report, and have been
placed as Appendices numbered herein.

A.

REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES

“Report on CSR Activities” provides a brief outline of the company’s CSR policy, the composition of CSR
Committee, average net profit of the Company for the last three financial years, CSR budget, prescribed CSR
expenditure, and details of CSR activities | projects undertaken during the financial year 2018-19 etc. [placed
at Annexure-A]

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

The “Management Discussion and Analysis Report” provides an overview of the affairs of the Company,
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business environment, mission & objectives, sectoral and segment-wise operational performance, strengths,
risks and concerns as well as human resource and internal control system. [placed at Annexure-B]

C. CORPORATEGOVERNANCEREPORT

The “Corporate Governance Report” highlights the Company’s philosophy of Corporate Governance,
composition of Board of Directors and its Committees, their details including the attendance of directors in the
meetings, etc. and other relevant disclosures. [placed at Annexure-C]. It is supplemented by the following
compliance certificates:

a) Certificate signed by CEO and CFO with respect to the truth and fairness of the Financial Statements, due
compliances, and financial reporting (placed at Annexure - C1);

b) Certificate signed by the Chairman affirming receipt of compliance with the Code of Conduct and key
values from all the Board members and Senior Management personnel during the year 2018-19. (placed at
Annexure -C2); and

c) Certificate of compliance of Corporate Governance provisions signed by practicing company secretary
(placed at Annexure — C3).

D. SECRETARIALAUDITORREPORT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed M/s K.K. Singh &
Associates, Practicing Company Secretary, to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the
financial year 2018-19. The Secretarial Audit Report in Form No. MR-3 received from the auditor is placed at
Annexure-D. The Secretarial Auditor had also observed that the board falls below minimum number of
directors for a period of eight days due to resignation of two directors as the new directors have been
appointed on the basis of nomination made by the Holding Company. It was also observed that the Company
was required to have one-third of its board members as Independent Directors as per DPE Guidelines, 2010.
However, it is mentioned that the same has been exempted vide MCA notification dated 05.07.2017 for
wholly owned subsidiary companies and through Office Memorandum F.No. 18(7)/2013-GM dated 16th
January, 2019, it is clarified that the concerned administrative Ministry/Department so desires may appoint
non-official directors on the board of subsidiary of a CPSE. Also, it has been observed that all the directors of
the Company are non- executive which shall be restricted to maximum of two Directors only as per DPE
Guidelines, 2010. On this issue, Directors state that being a wholly owned subsidiary of IRCON (holding
company), the appointment of directors on the Board is made by the Holding Company.

E. EXTRACTOFANNUALRETURN

In accordance with Section 92(3) and Section 134(3) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12(1) of
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 an extract of the Annual Return in formno. MGT-9
forms part of Director’s Report and is placed at Annexure “E".

F. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES U/S 188

All contracts [ arrangements | transactions entered by the Company during the financial year 2018-19 with
related parties were either in ordinary course of business and | or at arm’s length basis

The details of contracts or arrangements entered with related parties pursuant to Section 188(1) of
Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8(2) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 in Form AOC - 2, is placed at
Annexure “F".
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DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In accordance with Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company confirms
that:

I.  inthe preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with
proper explanation relating to material departures;

Il.  suchaccounting policies had been selected and applied them consistently and such judgments and estimates
were made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company for the financial year ended on 31st March 2019 and of the profit of the Company for the financial
year 2018-19.

[Il.  proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

IV.  the annual accounts for the financial year ended on 31st March 2019 have been prepared on a ‘going concern’

basis;

V.  the proper systems had been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that
such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

AUDITORS
STATUTORY AUDITORS

Kapoor Goyal & Co, Chartered Accountants, was appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, as
Statutory Auditors, to audit the accounts of the Company for the financial year 2018-19.

SECRETARIALAUDITOR

The Board of Directors have appointed M/s K.K. Singh & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary, to conduct the
Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 2018-19.

INTERNAL AUDITORS

The Board of Directors have appointed M/s Rahul Jain & Associates, Cost & Management Accountants as Internal
Auditors to conduct the Internal Audit of the Company for the financial year 2018-19.

MSE COMPLIANCE

It always has been endeavors of IrconISL to support Micro and Small Enterprises (MSEs) and local suppliers.
IrconlSL has taken a number of steps including the necessary steps to implements the Public Procurement Policy of
the Government of India to procure the items specified from MSEs. The actual procurement from MSEs during the
year was Rs 4.96 Crore vis-a-vis total annual procurement target of Rs 30 Lakh of the Company.

POLICY IN COMPLIANCE OF THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT

The Company has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at the workplace and adoption of policy on prevention,
prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace is under consideration in line with the provisions of the
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Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the rules made
thereunder.

During the period under review, there was no incidence where any complaint relating to sexual harassment was
reported pursuant to Section 22 of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013. Also, the constitution of internal complaint committee in accordance with the provisions of
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 is under
consideration.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

We record our appreciation and thanks to Ircon International Limited, Holding Company, Ministry of Railways, Rail Land
Development Authority (RLDA), Ministry of External Affairs, Ministry of Science and Technology and Haryana
Vishwakarma Skill University and other Ministries and clients for their continued interest and support to the Company.

We place on record our sincere appreciation for all the employees of the Company at all levels for their untiring efforts,
dedication, and sincerity inimproving the performance of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-

(M.K. Singh)

Place: New Delhi Chairman
Date: 21.05.2019 (DIN 06607392)
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Annexure- A

REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILTY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

[Pursuant to Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014]

A brief outline of the Company's CSR Policy, including overview of projects or programs undertaken and
its web-link:

Your Company is committed to its stakeholders to conduct its business in an economically, socially, and
environmentally sustainable manner, that is transparent and ethical.

As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant guidelines of DPE for the CSR, your company has
framed its CSR & Sustainability Policy in 2014 which aims to bring qualitative social changes to empower the
society in all aspects through its social impact. The CSR Policy outlining the thrust areas of development viz.
Education, Literacy, and Environment Sustainability & Health as approved by the Board of Directors is available on
the Company’s website at http://www.irconisl.com.

The object of the CSR Policy is to establish relevance of potential CSR activities to IrconlSL’s core business and
create an overview of activities to be undertaken, in line with Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013 in and around
Delhiand NCR Region.

During the financial year 2018-19, IrconlISL has undertaken CSR activities in the field of Skill Development Training
Programme at HVSU campus located at Palwal, Haryana and providing a Solar System (10 KWP) and 2 (Two) sets of
Computer system with printer to Govt. School, Dudhola Village, Palwal District, Haryana.

Composition of CSR Committee:

Presently your Company has a Board Level Committee for monitoring the CSR activities | projects. A brief
background on the constitution of Committee during the year 2018-19, its mandate, along with details of meetings
held during 2018-19 are given in para 7.2 of the Corporate Governance Report. Presently, the Committee is headed
by Mr. A.K. Goyal, Part-time Director as Chairman; with Mr. Surajit Dutta, Part-time Director; and Mr. Parag Verma,
Part-time Director as members.

The average net profit of the Company from Indian projects in the last three financial years i.e. 2015-16,
2016-17 and 2017-18is Rs. 904.15 lakhs.

The CSR Budget for the financial year 2018-19 is Rs. 18,08,000/- which is 2% of the average net profit of
the Company from Indian projects in the last three financial years.

The BoD through notes by Circulation No. 52/18, dated 19.09.2018 had approved CSR Budget for the
financial year 2018-19 on 24.09.2018, of Rs. 18.08 lakhs which is 2% of the average net profit from
Indian projects in the last three financial years i.e. 2015-16, 2016-17 and 2017-18, which was later
confirmed by the BoD in its 45th meeting held on 29.10.2018.

During the year 2018-19, the Company has spent Rs. Rs 14,60,151/- on CSR activities. Thus, the unspent
amount for the year 2018-19is Rs 3,47,849/- and the same will be carry forward to the next financial year
i.e. 2019-20. In addition, there was no carry forward from previous year i.e. 2017-18. (Refer Note No. 52
of Financial Statements).
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Skill HVSU campus | Rs 5,72,873 | Some of the training programme are Construction Skill
Development | located at scheduled in Financial Year 2019 - 20, | Development Council
Training Palwal, Haryana. which are yet to be taken. of India (CSDCI)
Programme
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and necessary input credit is availed.
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Annexure-B

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

AN OVERVIEW

Ircon Infrastructure & Services Limited (IrconlSL) was incorporated on 30th September 2009 as a wholly owned
subsidiary of Ircon International Limited (IRCON, a Schedule ‘A’, Mini Ratna - category | Company under the Ministry of
Railways)as an outcome of MoU by the Holding Company with RLDA for “Planning, Design, Development, Operation and
Maintenance of Multi- Functional Complexes (MFC's) on Indian Railways Land” to provide facilities and amenities to users
of Indian Railway System. The physical work of construction (warm shells) was taken up on 24 stations. The Company has
successfully sub-leased 23 MFCs to third parties.

The above objectives were limited for further growth of the Company and therefore the Company diversified its Business in
various other sectors and hence objectives were amended accordingly.

BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT

Infrastructure sector is a key driver for the Indian economy. The sector is highly responsible for propelling India’s overall
development and enjoys intense focus from Government for initiating policies that would ensure time-bound creation of
world class infrastructure in the country. In order to boost the construction of buildings in the country, the Government of
India has decided to come up with a single window clearance facility to accord speedy approval of construction projects. In
2018, India ranked 44th out of 167 countries in World Bank's Logistics Performance Index (LPI) 2018. Foreign Direct
Investment (FDI) received in Construction Development sector (townships, housing, built up infrastructure and
construction development projects) from April 2000 to December 2018 stood at US$ 24.91 bhillion, according to the
Department of Industrial Policy and Promotion (DIPP). The logistics sector in India is growing at a CAGR of 10.5 per cent
annually and is expected to reach US$ 215 billion in 2020. The Government of India is expected to invest highly in the
infrastructure sector. The Government of India is taking every possible initiative to boost the infrastructure sector. The
infrastructure sector has become the biggest focus area as under Union Budget 2019-20, US$ 63.20 billion was allocated
to the sector.According to Department of Industrial Policy and Promotion (DIPP), Construction Development sector and
Infrastructure Activities sector received FDI inflows amounting to US$ 24.90 billion and US$ 13.49 bhillion, respectively
from April 2000 to September 2018. This favourable current status of the market makes the sector an attractive
opportunity for the future.

The Company is looking for opportunities in the following areas-:

e  Preparation of Detailed Project Reports for projects of Government of India.

®  Project Management Consultancy (PMC) for various private | government agencies.

e  Realestate projects on Build-Operate-Transfer (BOT) basis.

e Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) and Environment Management Plan (EMP) studies for projects.

e  Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Projects of Public Sector Undertakings.
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OUTLOOK

The Vision/Mission of the Company as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company are: -
Vision | Mission

To be recognised as a specialised Infrastructure developer and establish itself as a renowned service provider for all areas
of Infrastructure Projects with special emphasis on Environment, Quality, and Safety.

The objectives of the Company as mentioned in Corporate Plan are:

Objectives

i)  Toachieveaturnover of Rs.100 crores with an operational profit of Rs.10 crores by the end of FY 2020-21.
i) Toprovideinfrastructure Project Management Consultancy services in India and abroad.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

During the financial year 2018-19, your Company has recorded a total operating income of Rs 70.64 crore, registering
118.26% increase over previous year’s operating income of Rs 32.36 crore. The increase in total operating income is
majorly due to the execution of consultancy projects.

The Company has achieved Profit Before Tax of Rs 17.20 Crore. The Profit After Tax has increased to Rs 14.02 Crore over
the Previous year of Rs 13.65 Crore.

The Earning Per Share for the year 2018-19 have increased to Rs 2.16 as compared to Rs 2.10 in the previous year. The
increase has been on account of increase in profit after tax.

The net worth of the Company as on 31st March, 2019is Rs 142.38 Crore.
OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

IrconlISL has successfully sub-leased 23 MFCs to third parties. Out of these 23 sub-leased MFCs, the MFC at Tarapith,
Rajgir and Thiruvala were considered financially unviable and returned to Rail Land Development Authority (RLDA) in
accordance with the terms of the agreements. Your company has terminated the sub-lease agreements of MFCs at Kannur,
Rampurhaat and Mysuru due to non-payment of lease-rent and other dues by sub-lessee. The process for sub leasing the
MFC at Rampurhaat has been restarted whereas the petition has been filed by sub lessees against the termination of sub
lease agreements of MFCs at Kannur and Mysore before the respective High Courts.

IrconISL is providing Project Management Consultancy services to Ministry of External Affairs (MEA) for Construction of
Two Lane Road on NH Specifications from Paletwa to India-Myanmar Border (Zorinpui) from km 0.00 to km 109.2 in Chin
State of Myanmar having construction cost of Rs. 1518 crores. Also, IrconISL is providing Project Management
Consultancy services to Ministry of External Affairs (MEA) for Construction of 69 Bridges including Approach Road on
Tamu-Kyigone-Kalewa (TKK) section of the Trilateral Highway in Myanmar having construction cost of Rs. 293.93 crores
wherein Ministry of External Affairs has terminated the contract of M/s NCSL- MTDCL (JV) who was appointed as EPC
contractor (Engineering, Procurement & Construction) for construction of 69 Bridges in Tamu-Kyigone-Kalewa section of
Trilateral Highway in Myanmar. The retendering of the work and modality of execution are under finalization by Ministry of
External Affairs with IrconlSL.

Your Company is providing Project Management Consultancy for establishment of Shri Vishwakarma Skill University
(SVSU) at Dudhola, Palwal, Haryana. The agreement for the same was signed on 22.01.2018 and the estimated value of
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the project is approx. Rs. 425 crores (including PMC fees). The physical progress of the project up to March, 2019 is
11.8% and is scheduled to be completed by January-2020.

Your Company is providing a Project Management Consultancy for construction of new State-of-Art Building of
Department of Science & Technology at Technology Bhawan, New Mehrauli Road, New Delhi. The physical progress of
the project up to March, 2019is 9% and is scheduled to be completed by September 2021.

Your Company is also providing Project Management Consultancy service for construction of Barrack accommodation for
security personnel at 07 Land Ports by Land Ports Authority of India (LPAI) having total project cost of approx. Rs. 197.64
crores.

Your company is also providing Project Management Consultancy service for construction of Multi Modal Logistic Park
(MMLP) at Paradip (Odisha) and near Kadakola station, Mysuru District, Karnataka awarded by Container Corporation of
India Ltd. (CONCOR) having estimated cost of Rs 66.88 crores and Rs 93 Crore respectively.

Your company has also been appointed as Project Management Consultant for construction of two Navodaya Vidyalaya at
JNV, Agar Malwa (Madhya Pradesh) and Sabarkantha (Gujarat) for Navodaya Vidyalaya Samiti (an autonomous
organization under Ministry of HRD). The agreements for both the projects were signed on 14.09.2017 and the estimated
project cost is approx. Rs. 25.09 crores and Rs. 18.06 crores, respectively.

During the financial year 2018-19, IrconlSL has secured four new Project Management Consultancy projects
viz.

(a)  Project Management Consultancy for Setting up a Multi Model Logistics Park at Bhaupur, Kanpur (U.P) for
CONCOR, awarded on 11.06.2018 The estimated cost of the project is approx. Rs.108.36 crores.

(b)  Project Management Consultancy for Setting up a Multi Model Logistics Park at Dahej, Gujarat - for CONCOR,
awarded on 03.09.2018.The estimated cost of the project is approx. Rs. 201.00 crores.

(c)  Project Management Consultancy for Replacement of CST-9 Sleepers with PRC Sleepers of MGR System of Stage-
1 (2x210MW) at National Thermal Power Corporation (NTPC), Unchahar, U.P., awarded on 26.07.2018. The
estimated cost of the project is approx. Rs.36.26. crores.

(d)  Project Management Consultancy for Construction of Infrastructure works at NDRF Academy at Nagpur,
Agreement signed on 24.01.2019. The estimated cost of the project is approx. Rs. 74.34 crores.

IrconlSL is also undertaking the work of “Supply of Manpower” for Malaysia Project of Ircon. As on 31st March 2019, 03
employees are working in Malaysia. IrconISL is also providing manpower supply for Ircon’s project in Algeria and has
deployed one employee for Algeria project of Ircon.

After the closure of the financial year 2018-19, your Company has secured a new project of Project Management
Consultancy for Detailed Engineering & Project Supervision for Development of handling facilities for M/s IFFCO at MMLP
Paradip Port Odisha awarded by CONCOR India Limited, on 08.05.2019. The total cost of project is Rs 98.50 Crore.

Your Company is also undertaking the work of “Leasing of Machinery” to Ircon for its various Projects. Earlier, one
Duomatic Machine was provided for Sri Lanka Project of Ircon which was repatriated to India on 30.06.2017 after
completion of the project with Ircon. During the Financial Year 2018-19, the said machine was deployed in Jayanagar
Bardibas Rail Project for a period of 9 months i.e. from May 2018 to January 2019 and in February 2019 the same is
deployed in Chhattisgarh East Rail Ltd. (CERL) project of Ircon International Limited.
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RISKS AND CONCERNS

With the completion of MFCs construction progressively, the work of leasing of MFCs are being taken up which is very
much area specific and market dependant. Although, in-depth study for market potential has been carried out by
independent renowned consultant but the risk of collection of revenue still exists.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

Your Company has appointed M/s Rahul Jain & Associates, Cost & Management Accountants as Internal Auditor for the
financial year 2018-19. Internal Auditor conduct audit of the Company to test the adequacy of the internal systems and
suggest continual improvements. The Internal Auditor is experienced cost and management accountant firm which is
selected through a transparent selection process, and upon appointment directly report to the Management. This ensures
Internal Auditors’ independence. Reports of the Internal Auditor is reviewed, compliances are ensured and put up for
consideration of the Audit Committee.

HUMAN RESOURCE

The Company aims to achieve the right size and right mix of human resource/ employees for the organization. The
employees of IrconISL is a combination of those who have been appointed by the Company and posted at the corporate
office of the company or at the project site and the employees who are on secondment basis from Ircon. The Company also
provides manpower to Ircon International Limited (Holding Company) Malaysia Project and Algeria Project. The total
manpower strength as on 31 March 2019 is 78 employees including 3 contract employees working for Malaysia project
and 1 contract employee working for Algeria project of Ircon International Limited (Ircon). Considering the long term
growth prospects, your Company is planning to enhance the core manpower resources by way of its own cadre
development.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-

(M.K. Singh)

Place: New Delhi Chairman
Date: 21.05.2019 (DIN 06607392)
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Mr. M.K. Singh Part-time
(DIN 06607392) Chairman
(w.e.f. 10.04.2018)




Mr. AK. Goyal Part-time
(DIN 05308809) Director [IrconPBTL, IrconSGTL, ISTPL,

IrconDHHL, IrconVKEL]
Mr. Surajit Dutta Part-time NIL 2
(DIN 06687032) Director
Mr. Parag Verma Part-time 1 NIL
O(DIN 05272169) | Director [IRSDC]
(w.e.f. 05.04.2018)
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Overseeing the company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that
the financial statements are correct, sufficient and credible.

Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements before they are approved by the Board of
Directors. In particular: -

a.  Matters required to be included in the Directors' Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board's report
in terms of sub section 5 of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013;

b.  Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

c.  Majoraccounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management;
d.  Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;

e.  Compliance with legal requirements relating to financial statements;

f.  Disclosure of any related party transactions; and

g.  Qualifications in the draft audit report.

Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before they are approved by the Board of
Directors.

Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations.
Reviewing, with the management, performance of internal auditors and adequacy of the internal control systems.

Discussion with auditors — both internal and statutory auditors — to address significant issues and follow up
thereon.

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit department,
staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure, coverage and frequency of internal
audit.

Recommending to the Board the fixation of audit fees.
Reviewing the appointment, reappointment, remuneration, and removal, etc. of internal auditor.

Reviewing the Certification/declaration of financial statements by the Chief Executive Officer/Chief Financial
Officer.

7.1.2 Audit Committee — Composition and Attendance:

The Audit Committee of the Board, consisting of three part-time Directors of the Company, was originally
constituted on 05.07.2013 with the approval of Board of Directors adopting the terms of reference as given in DPE
Guidelines on Corporate Governance dated 14th May 2010, para 4.2 to para 4.5. This has been reconstituted on as
and when there has been a change in part-time directors nominated by holding company. Accordingly, the
Committee was re-constituted on 26.04.2018 by a note circulated to all the Board members which was further
confirmed in 43rd BoD meeting held on 30th May 2018.
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- 2017-18 25th September 2018 m Company’s Registered Office, Delhi

- 2016-17 25th September 2017 m Company's Registered Office, Delhi
7th | 201516 27th September 2016 1500hrs | Company’s Registered Office, Delhi
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2014-15 20th February 2015 1700 hrs | Company’s Registered Office, Delhi

2012-13 22nd January 2013 1430 hrs | Company’s Registered Office, Delhi
2011-12 12th March 2012 1430 hrs | Company’s Registered Office, Delhi

Administration & other expenses/ Total expenses (in %) 5.96% 12.63%
Bank & Financial Charges/ Total expenses (in %) 0.08% 6.56% _
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The Company periodically informs the Board about the risks associated with its projects in risky areas and foreign
exchange management. Details pertaining to risk management have been given in Management Analysis Report
under the heading ‘Risks and Concerns’'.

The entire Equity Share Capital of the Company i.e. Rs 65,00,00,000 is held by Ircon International Limited, Holding
Company.

There has been no instance of non-compliance of any statutory regulation or government guidelines nor there has
been any penalties or strictures imposed on the Company on any matter related to the capital market and guidelines
issued by government.

IrconlSL has secured, based on self-evaluation, an annual score of '98.21" out of 100 which falls under 'Excellent’
grade for compliance of DPE Corporate Governance Guidelines for the year 2017-18.

The transactions with related party are in the ordinary course of business on arms’ length basis and the disclosure of
the same has been made as per requirement of relevant accounting standard in notes to Financial Statement of the
Company.

The Company has systems in place for monitoring statutory and procedural compliances. The Board is reported the
status of the same so as to ensure proper compliances of all laws applicable to the Company.

CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION

The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have certified in writing with respect to the truth and
fairness of the financial statements, due compliances, and financial reporting which was placed before the Audit
Committee and the Board of Directors (placed as Annexure - “C-1" to this Report).

CODEOF CONDUCT

The Company has in place a Code of Conduct for Board Members and for Senior Management of the Company and
posted on the website of the Company. The declaration signed by Chairman affirming receipt of compliance with the
Code of Conduct from all the Board members and Members of Senior Management during the year 2018-19 ( placed
as Annexure -"C-2" to this Report)

GENERALINFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS
Means of communication

The Annual Report including the audited financial statements for the year 2018-19 of IrconlSL are available on the
website of the Company www..irconisl.com and at the Registered Office of the company.

Annual General Meeting of the Current Year
Date : 27/08/2019
Time : 11:00A.M.

Venue : Board Room of the Company’s
Registered Office - C-4, District Centre, Saket, New Delhi - 110 017
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Promoters (Ircon International Limited and its nine
nominees) 6,50,00,000 100%

6,50.00.000 100%
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Annexure C1

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
CERTIFICATION

We have reviewed the Financial Statements including the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit & Loss, and the Cash Flow
Statement for the financial year 2018-19 and to the best of our knowledge and belief:

)

(ii)

)

)

(v)

(vi)

these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements
that might be misleading;

these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing
accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year
which are fraudulent, illegal, or violative of the Company’s code of conduct.

We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have
evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting. We
have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal
controls of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

We have indicated to Auditors and the Audit Committee changes in Accounting Policies during the year, and that the
same have been disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements; and

There was no instance of fraud of which we are aware nor there has been involvement of the Management or an
employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

Sd/- SdJ-
Mr. Pooja Chaurasia Mr. R.P Singh
Chief Financial Officer (CFO) Chief Executive Officer (CEOQ)

Place: New Delhi
Dated: 21.05.2019
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DECLARATION BY CHAIRMAN REGARDING COMPLIANCE WITH THE
CODE OF CONDUCT BY BOARD MEMBERS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
OF IRCON INFRASTRUCTURE AND SERVICES LIMITED DURING THE
FINANCIALYEAR 2018-19.
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Annexure - C-3

Santosh Pandey & Associates Address: 611, Vishal Tower, District Centre,
Practicing Company Secretaries Janakpuri West, New Delhi 110058

Mobile No.:- 9999202268
Email ID:- info@spcounsels.com

CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE OF DPE GUIDELINES ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2018-20189.

To

The Members of
Ircon Infrastructure & Services Limited
New Delhi

We have examined the compliance of Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprise, 2010 as
issued by DPE from time to time, of your Company.

The Compliance of Guidelines on Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was
limited to the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the
Guidelines on Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on financial statements of the
Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us by the management, we
certify that the Company has complied with the DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance with the following observation-

“It was observed that the Company was required to have one-third of its board members as Independent Directors as per
DPE Guidelines, 2010. However, it is mentioned that the same has been exempted vidle MCA notification dated
05.07.2017 for wholly owned subsidiary companies and also as per Office Memorandum F.No. 18(7)/2013-GM dated
16th January, 2019, it is clarified that the concerned administrative Ministry/Department so desires may appoint non-
official directors on the board of subsidiary of a CPSE."

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Santosh Pandey & Associates

Sd/-

CS Santosh Pandey
Membership No. A40908
C.0.P No. 15211

Place :- New Delhi
Date :- 21st May, 2019
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Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; (N.A. during the period under
the review)

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992
("SEBI Act’):- N.A.

a)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)Regulations,
2011; (N.A. during the period under the review)

b)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992; (N.A. during the
period under the review)

c)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)Regulations, 2009;
(N.A. during the period under the review).

d)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and EmployeeStock Purchase
Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; (N.A. during the period under the review)

e)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; (N.A.
during the period under the review)

f)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations,
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; (N.A. during the period under the review)

gl  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; (N.A. during the
period under the review) and

h)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; (N.A. during the period
under the review).

Being a Central Public Sector Enterprises and a wholly owned subsidiary of M/s. Ircon International Limited (IRCON,
a Schedule ‘A’, Mini Ratna — category | Company under the Ministry of Railway), we have examined and verified the
compliance under other specifically applicable Acts, Laws and Regulations to the Company, namely as follows:

a)  DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance dated 14th May, 2010.

b)  Respective Labour Laws to the extent applicable.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

The SEBI (Listing Obligations And Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, if applicable. (Being non listed
company during the period under review, it's not applicable).

During the period under review and as per the explanations and representations made by the management and
subject to clarifications given to us the Company has satisfactorily complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, etc. mentioned above subject to the following observations i.e. the Code of Conduct for
Directors as required under DPE Guidelines, 2010 had been approved at the Board Meeting held on 24.03.2019 and
the same is posted on the website of the Company. Further, the Company has spent Rs. 14,60,151/- as against
required amount of Rs. 18,08,000/- on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities during the year of report.
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We further report that

The Board of Directors (BoD) of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Director and Non
Executive Directors subject to the observation mentioned below. During the period under review, there were changes in the
composition of Board of Directors, two Directors have been resigned from the office of Directorshipin the F.Y. 2017-18 as
a result of which the Board falls below the minimum number of Directors for a period of 8 days. However, the new
Directors have been appointed w.e.f. 05.04.2018 and 10.04.2018 respectively on the basis of nomination made by its
Holding Company. All four Directors of the Company are nominated by its holding company who is non executive Directors
whereas as per clause 3.1.3 of the DPE Guidelines, 2010, the Nominee Directors shall be restricted maximum of two
Directors only. During the year of report, the company was required to have 1/3rd Independent Directors of Board
Members as per DPE Guidelines, 2010, which was not complied with. The requirement of having Independent Directors
under the Act, have been exempted vide MCA notification dated 05.07.2017 for wholly owned subsidiary companies.

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings including Committees thereof, along with agenda
and detailed notes on agenda at least seven days in advance or on shorter notice, as the case may be, and a system exists
for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting by the directors.

Decisions at the Board Meetings, as represented by the management, were taken unanimously.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, there was no other event/action having major bearing onthe Company’s
affairs.

We further report that during the year under report, the Company has not been exposed to any of the following instances.
I.  Public/Right/Preferential issue of shares | debentures/sweat equity, etc.

Il.  Redemption/buy-back of securities.

lll. Majordecisions taken by the members in pursuance to section 180 of the Companies Act, 2013.

IV. Merger/amalgamation | reconstruction, etc.

V.  Foreign technical collaborations

For K. K. Singh & Associates Company Secretaries

Sd/-

CS Richa Singh

Date: 21.05.2019 Partner
Place: Gurugram ACS No.: 44237 CP No. : 16640

*This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as ‘Annexure A" and it form anintegral part of this
report.
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Head Office:

384P, Sector-40, Gurugram - 122003, Haryana, India.
Ph.: +91-124-4370002, Fax : +91-124-4370002
E-mail :admin@kksinghassociates.com

Website: www.kksinghassociates.com
www.kksainc.com.

‘ANNEXURE A’
To,

The Members,
M|s Ircon Infrastructure & Services Limited.
Plot No. C-4, District Centre, Saket, New Delhi- 110017.

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our finding /audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct
facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

3.  We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the
company. We have relied upon the Report of Statutory Auditors regarding compliance of Companies Act, 2013 and
Rules made thereunder relating to maintenance of Books of Accounts, papers and financial statements of the
relevant Financial Year, which gives a true and fair view of the state of the affairs of the Company.

4.  We have relied upon the Report of Statutory Auditors regarding compliance of Fiscal Laws including Service Tax or
GST. As the case may be, and not gone into that.

5. Wherever required, we have relied on the Management representation and obtained the same about the compliance
of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

6. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

For K. K. Singh & Associates Company Secretaries

Sd/-

CS Richa Singh

Date: 21.05.2019 Partner
Place: Gurugram ACS No.: 44237 CP No.: 16640
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Address of the Registered office and contact details Plot No. C-4, District Centre, Saket,
New Delhi- 110017
Ph. No. 011-29565666

Whetherlisted company o

Name, Address and Contact
details of Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any Not Applicable

To undertake planning, designing, development, Improvement,

commissioning, operation, maintenance, etc. in the field of

construction, of infrastructure of Multi-Functional Complexes

(MFCs), etc. to provide facilities and amenities to users of

Indian Railway System. 6810 25.18%

Project Management Consultancy Projects 7110 67.50%

IRCON INTERNATIONAL LIMITED | U45203DL1976G0I008171| Holding | 100% 2(46)
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Financial Stalement







T oeome 12| 790151 |_391195 42073 | 18757415108 | 319872

ProfitBefore Tax | 171961 | 181063 208053 | 2261.04] 202877 | 1.34085)

Proft After Tax | 140269 | 1,364 123628 | 1.422.28 109260 | 766.04

ot 1075700 | 124359 1145891 | 1023384 831155521075
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BALANCE SHEET
~ Patelas NoteNo.  Asat3stMarch2013 Asat3istMarch2018

s




7

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

LS



7

Statement of Cash Flow

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES “m 15,346,660

NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES “ (729,188) (3,485,250)
s




NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES o | 477412 242,978,795

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT (A+B+C) -122,570,042 -231,117,385

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT m -122,570,043 -231,117,384
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Statement of changes in equity
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES FORMING PART OF THE
ACCOUNTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2018-2019

NOTE 1: CORPORATEINFORMATION

Ircon Infrastructure & Services Limited is a wholly owned Subsidiary Company of Ircon International Limited.
The company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the companies Act applicable in India.
The Company had initially incorporated for Construction and development of Multi-Functional Complexes
(MFCs) at identified Railway stations to provide amenities to Railway users. Also, the company diversified
progressively to Infrastructure Consultancy Projects, Preparation of DPR and FS, Project Management
Consultancy Projects, Supply of Manpower, Leasing of Plant & Machinery, Sub- Leasing of MFCs and execution
of CSR projects of various clients including Holding Company. The Company caters to both domestic and
international markets. The registered office of the company is located at C-4, District Centre, Saket, New Delhi -
110017.

NOTE 2: SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICY UNDERIND AS (STANDALONE).
Basis of Preparation
2.1 Statement of Compliance

The financial statements as at and for year ended March 31, 2019 have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) notified under section 133 of the companies Act, 2013 as Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, Companies (Indian accounting standards) Amendment Rules 2016 and
Companies (Indian accounting standards) Amendment Rules 2017.

2.2 Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and on an accrual basis,
except for the following item that have been measured at fair value as required by relevant Ind-AS.

i) Defined benefit plans
i) Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value.
2.3 Use of estimates and judgment

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of financial statements and the
reported amount of income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements:
® Fairvalue measurement of financial instruments
e Useful lives of property, plant and equipment & intangible assets

e Determination of percentage completion in construction contracts
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¢ |mpairment of Non-financial assets
¢ Impairment of financial assets
e Estimation of Deferred & Current tax

® Revenue - The Company recognizes revenue for a performance obligation satisfied over time after
reasonably measuring its progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance obligation.

The recognition of revenue require assessments and judgements to be made on changes in work scope,
claims (compensation, rebates etc.) and other payments to the extent performance obligation is satisfied
and they are probable and are capable of being reasonably measured. For the purpose of making estimates
for claims, the company used the available contractual and historical information.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Future results could differ due to
changes in these estimates and difference between the actual result and the estimates are recognised in the
period in which the results are known /materialize.

Statement of Cash flow

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit | (loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The
cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on the
available information.

Foreign Currency Transactions
i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates. (l.e. Functional Currency). The financial statements are presented
in Indian rupees, which s the presentation as well as Functional currency of company.

(ii) Foreign Currency Transactions
(a) Transactions of Indian operations:

i) Allforeign currency transactions are translated into functional Currency at the rate prevalent on the date of
transaction.

ii) Property, plant and Equipment, intangibles, investment property, prepaid expenses, inventory and non-
monetary items are translated at the rate on the date of initial transaction.

ii) Monetary items (Trade receivables, trade payables, Cash and Bank, Loans and Borrowings and other
receivables & payables) and contingent assets & liahilities denominated in foreign currency are translated at
the prevailing closing buying rate at each reporting date.

iv) Foreign Exchange Gains or Losses in respect of above transactions are recognised in Statement of profit and
loss.
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(b) Transactions of Foreign operations:

i) Allforeign currency transactions are translated into functional Currency at the rate prevalent on the date of
transaction.

ii) Property, plant and Equipment, intangibles, prepaid expenses, inventory and non-monetary items are
translated at the rate on the date of initial transaction.

i) Monetary items (Trade receivables, trade payables, Cash and Bank, Loans and Borrowings and other
receivables & payables) and contingent assets & liahilities denominated in foreign currency are translated at
the prevailing closing buying rate at each reporting date.

iv) Foreign Exchange Gain or Losses in respect of above transactions are recognised in Statement of profit and
loss account.

The result and financial position of foreign operation that have a functional currency different from
the presentation currency are translated in to presentation currency as follows.

i) Assets]Liabilities - Closing Exchange Rate on the reporting date
i) Income/Expenses — Average exchange rate during the year.

il) Exchange differences on translation of functional currency to presentation currency are — recognised in OCI
(Other comprehensive income)

iv)] Ondisposal of Foreign Operation (on realization of complete receivables from client) transfer the component
of OCI (Other comprehensive income) to profit or loss relating to respective foreign operation.

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

(a) Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if
any.

(b) The machinery spares which can be used only in connection with an item of Property, Plant and Equipment
and whose use is expected to be irregular are capitalized & depreciated/amortized over the balance life of
such Property, Plant and Equipment.

(c) Subsequent costrelating to property, plant & equipment shall be recognized as an asset if:
a) itisprobable that future economic benefits associated with the items will flow to the entity; and
b) thecost of theitem can be measured reliably.

(d) Costof assetincludes the following

i. Costdirectly attributable to the acquisition of the assets

ii. Incidental expenditure during the construction period is capitalized as part of the indirect construction cost
to the extent the expenditure is directly related to construction or is incidental thereto.

iii. Present value of the estimated costs of dismantling & removing the items & restoring the site on which it is
located if recognition criteria are met.
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(iv) Cost of replacement, major inspection, repair of significant parts and borrowing costs for long-term
construction projects are capitalised if the recognition criteria are met.

(v) Anitem of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

(vi) Amounts paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding as of each reporting
date and the cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for intended use before such date are disclosed
under capital work- in-progress. Expenses directly attributable to project, prior to commencement of
commercial operation, are considered as project development expenditure and shown under Capital Work-in-
Progress.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are recognized when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to
the asset will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are
stated at historical cost less accumulated amortization and impairment loss, if any.

Investment properties

(a) Investment property comprises completed property, property under construction and property held under a
finance lease that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both, rather than for sale in the
ordinary course of business or for use in production or administrative functions.

(b) Investment Properties are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

(c) The company depreciates building component of investment property over the useful life from the date of
original purchase.

(d) Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of or when they are
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. Difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in profit or loss in the
period of derecognition.

Investments in subsidiaries, and Joint Arrangements
a) Investmentin Subsidiaries

Investment in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
b) Joint Arrangement

Investment in joint arrangement are classified as either Jointly controlled operations under work sharing
arrangement (joint operation) or Contracts executed by jointly controlled entity (joint ventures). The
classification depends on the contractual rights and obligations of each JV partner rather than the legal
structure of the joint arrangement. Company has both joint ventures and joint operations.
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i) Joint Operations

Company recognises its direct right to the assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses of joint operations and its
share of any jointly held orincurred assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses.

ii) Joint Venture
(a) Unincorporated joint ventures:

e Company's share in profits or losses is accounted on determination of the profits or losses by the joint
ventures.

® Investments are carried at cost net of Company’s share in recognised profits or losses and net
investment is reflected as investments, loans & advances or current liabilities as the case may be.

(b) Incorporated joint ventures:
® Income oninvestmentsis recognised when the right to receive the same is established.

Investment in such joint ventures is carried at cost after providing for any diminution in value which is
other than temporary in nature.

2.10 Inventories
(@) Construction Workin Progress

Construction work-in-progress is valued at cost till such time the outcome of the job cannot be ascertained
reliably and at realizable value thereafter. Site mobilization expenditure to the extent not written off valued
at cost.

(b) Others

i. In Cost Plus contracts, the cost of all materials, spares and stores not reimbursable as per the terms of the
contract is shown as inventory valued as per (lll) below.

ii. Inltem Rate and Lump Sum Turnkey contracts, the cost of all materials, spares (other than capitalized) and
stores are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss in the year of use.

iii. Inventories are valued at lower of the cost arrived at on First in First out (FIFO) basis and net realizable value.
iv. Loose tools are expensed in the year of purchase.
2.11 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent comprise of cash at bank, cash in hand and short term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value and Bank Overdraft.

For the purpose of statement of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term bank
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts since they are considered integral part of the
company’s cash management.

212 Provisions
(a) Provision for Maintenance

i) InCost Plus contract, no provision for maintenance is required to be made where cost is reimbursable.
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ii) Item Rate and Lump Sum turnkey contracts, provision is made for maintenance to cover company’s liability
during defect liability period keeping into consideration the contractual obligations, the obligations of the
sub- contractors, operating turnover and other relevant factors.

iii) Provision for unforeseen expenditure during design guarantee period is made based on risk perception of
management in each contract assessed at the end of each financial year. This shall, however, be subject to a
minimum of Rs. 50 lakhs and maximum of the amount of Design guarantee specified in Contract Agreement
with the Client.

(b) Provision for Demobhilization

Provision for demobilisation to meet the expenditure towards demobilisation of Manpower and Plant &
Equipment is made in foreign projects.

(c) Others

Provision is recognised when:

i) The Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event,

ii) Aprobable outflow of resources is expected to settle the obligation and
iii) Areliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.

Reimbursement of the expenditure required to settle a provision is recognised as per contract provisions or
whenitis virtually certain that reimbursement will be received.

Provisions are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.
(d) Discounting of Provisions

Provision recognised as per above point a, b and ¢ which expected to be settled beyond 12 months are
measured at the present value by using pretax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability.
The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expenses.

(e) Onerous Contract

A contract in which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the
economic benefits expected to be received under it are termed as onerous contract and the present
obligation under such contracts is recognized and measured as a provision

Revenue Recognition
(a) Revenue from contracts with customers

(i) Revenue from Project Management Consultancy (PMC) Services: Revenue from contract with customer is
recognized when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

Revenue from contract with customers is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Company and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably.
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When another party is involved in providing goods or services to our customer, the Company determines
whether it is a principal or an agent in these transactions by evaluating the nature of its promise to the
customer. Revenue is booked on gross basis where the company acts as a principal and on net amount that it
retains for its services, in case the company acts as an agent. The Company has recognized revenue by
considering the substance of the contracts.

In all PMC Contracts, the Company recognize revenue for a performance obligation satisfied over time after
reasonably measuring its progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance obligation, In case
where the outcome of a performance obligation cannot be reasonably measured but the Company expects to
recover the costs incurred in satisfying the performance obligation, the revenue is being recognised only to
the extent of the costs incurred until such time that it can reasonably measure the outcome of the
performance obligation.

Performance obligation is measured by applying input method. In the contracts where performance
obligation cannot be measured by input method, the output method is applied, which faithfully depict the
Company’s performance towards complete satisfaction of the performance obligation.

Revenue is measured at the transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation and it excludes
amounts collected on behalf of third parties and is adjusted for variable consideration, if any.

After contract inception, the transaction price can change for various reasons. Any subsequent change in
the transaction price is then allocated to the performance obligations in the contract on the same basis as at
contract inception. Consequently, amounts allocated to a satisfied performance obligation are recognised as
revenue, or as a reduction of revenue, in the period in which the transaction price changes.

Estimate of revenues, costs, or extent of progress towards completion are revised if circumstances change.
Any resulting increases or decreases in estimated revenues or costs are recognized by including it in profit or
loss in the period of the change, if the change affects that period only or the period of change and future
periods, if the change affects both.

If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognized for the earned consideration that is
conditional. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers good or services to the
customer, a contract liability is recognized when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is
earlier). Contract liability is recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the Contract.

(ii) Revenue from Supply of manpower:

The Company recognizes revenue on satisfaction of the performance obligation by transferring the promised
service (i.e. supply of agreed manpower) as mentioned in the contract with the customer. Such services are
recognized as a performance obligation satisfied over time because the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefit provided by the Company.

(b) Other Revenue Recognition

i) Dividend income s recognized when the right to receive payment is established.
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ii) Interest income is recognized using Effective Interest rate Method. Interest income is included in other
income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Leases

(@) Companyasalessee

Finance Lease:-

i) That transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset.

ii) Arecapitalised at lease inception at lower of fair value or present value of minimum lease payment.

i) Payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

iv) Finance charges are recognised in finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

v) Depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty to obtain
ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life
of the asset and the lease term.

Operating Lease: -

i) Is classified as operating lease when significant portion of the risk and rewards are not transferred to the
company.

i) payments are charged to profit and loss on straight-line basis over the lease term except where lease
payment are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the expected
inflationary costincrease

b) Companyasalessor
Finance Lease: -

(i) Isrecognised when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from the company to the
lessee.

(i) Payment due are recorded as receivables at the company’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease
income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net
investment outstanding in respect of the lease

Operating Lease: -

(i) Are the leases in which the company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee.

(i) Incomes are recognized as income in the statement of profit & loss on straight-line basis over the lease term
except where lease payment are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate
for the expected inflationary cost increase. No rental income is booked in the case of termination of the
contract however, onrevival of contract, rentalincome is booked with retrospective effects.
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b) Post-employmentbenefits & other Long Term Employee Benefits

i. Retirement benefits in the form of provident fund and pension fund are defined contribution schemes. The
contributions to the provident fund trust and pension trust are charged to the statement to the Profit and
loss for the year when the contributions are due

ii. Provision for long term Leave Encashment, Gratuity & Other Retirement Benefits is made based on actuarial
valuation at the year end.

lii. Actuarial gains or losses are recognized in other comprehensive income.

iv. Gains and losses through remeasurment of the net defined benefit liability (Asset) are recognized in other
comprehensive income.

Others:

i.  The persons working for the company are on nomination/secondment basis and are on the rolls of its Holding
company. Provisions for leave encashment, gratuity and other retirement benefits is made by its holding
company based on actuarial valuation at the year end.

ii. Allother provisions of Retirement Benefits of the employees on nomination/ secondment basis is made by its
Holding Company.

iii. Provision for leave salary only is made in the books of accounts, for the contract employee posted at Sri
Lanka Branch as no other retirement benefit are payable to them.

iv. Provident Fund contribution of the employees on nomination/secondment is made by the Holding Company
toits PF Trust on accrual basis.

2.21 Taxes
a) Currentincome tax
i. Taxesincluding current income-tax are computed using the applicable tax rates and tax laws.

ii. Thetaxrates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted,
at the reporting date in the countries where the company operates and generates taxable income.

iii. Currentincome tax assets and liabilities for current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. Liability for additional taxes, if any, is provided [ paid
as and when assessments are completed.

iv. Current tax related to OCl Items is recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI).
b) Deferred tax
i. Deferredincome tax is recognized using balance sheet approach.

ii. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for temporary differences which is computed using
the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

iii. Deferred income tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
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against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses can be utilized.

iv. The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred income tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred tax related to OCl Item are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OClI).
Operating Segment

Operating segments are reported in the manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker.

Accordingly, the Company has identified five operating reporting segments based on Consultancy of Project,
Supply of Manpower, Sub Leasing of MFCs, and Leasing of Plant & Machinery & Other operating Revenue, two
operating reporting segments based on geographic location of the project viz. Domestic & International

Earnings per Share

In determining basic earnings per share, the company considers the net profit attributable to equity
shareholders. The number of shares used in computing basic earnings per share is the weighted average number
of shares outstanding during the period. In determining diluted earnings per share, the net profit attributable to
equity shareholders and weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the
effect of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Contingent Liabilities and contingent Assets

(a) Contingent Liabilities are disclosed in either of the following cases:

i.  Apresent obligation arising from a past event, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation; or

ii.  Areliable estimate of the present obligation cannot be made; or
iii.  Apossible obligation, unless the probability of outflow of resource is remote.
(b) Contingent assets is disclosed where aninflow of economic benefits is probable.

(c) Contingent Liability and Provisions needed against Contingent Liability and Contingent Assets are reviewed
at each Reporting date.

(d) Contingent Liability is net of estimated provisions considering possible outflow on settlement.
Fair Value Measurement

Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the
asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

¢ inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
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® inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the company. The fair value of an asset or
a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. The company uses valuation
techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

Assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

-Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

-Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is directly or indirectly observable

-Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
isunobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

At the reporting date, the Company analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are
required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the accounting policies. For this analysis, the Company verifies
the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to
contracts and other relevant documents.

The Company also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external
sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above.

2.26 Dividend to equity holders

Dividend paid/payable shall be recognised in the year in which the related dividends are approved by shareholders
or board of directors as appropriate.

2.27 Financial instruments
A. Initial recognition and measurement

Financial Instruments are recognized at its fair value plus or minus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial instruments.

- 10th Annual Report | 2018-19




Y77/ 4

INFRA & SERVICES

B. Subsequentmeasurement
Financial Assets
Financial assets are classified in following categories:
a). Debtinstruments at Amortised Cost

Debt instrument shall be measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

(i)  The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows and

(i)  The contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Such financial assets are measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate method less
impairment, if any. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the statement of profit and
loss.

b). Debtinstruments at Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

A “debt instrument’ is classified as at the Fair value through Other comprehensive income if both of the
following criteria are met:

e The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
the financial assets, and

e Theasset's contractual cash flows represent solely payment of principal and interest (SPPI).

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income
(OCI). However, the company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign
exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On de-recognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCl is reclassified from the equity to P&L. Interest earned is recognised using the EIR
method.

c). Debtinstruments at Fair value through Profit & Loss (FVTPL)

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instruments, which does not meet the
criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the company may elect to designate a debt instruments, which otherwise meets amortized
cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. If doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition
inconsistency. The company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the Statement of P&L.

Financial liahilities

a) Financial liabilities at Amortised Cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost represented by trade and other payables, security deposits and
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retention money are initially recognized at fair value, and subsequently carried at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method.

b) Financial liabilitiesat FVTPL

The company has not designated any financial liabilities at FVTPL.
c) De-recognition

Financial Asset

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognized only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires or it
transfers the financial assets and substantially all risks and rewards of the ownership of the asset.

d) Financial Liability

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and
the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of Profit & Loss.

e). Impairment of financial assets:

Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss. The
Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivable
and contract assets. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes
in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date,
right from its initial recognition

Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried
at amortised cost and FVTOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applies on whether there has
been significant increase in credit risk.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income/expense in
the statement of profit and loss.

2.28 Non-current Assets (or disposal groups) held for Sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying amount is to be
recovered principally through a sale transaction and a sale is considered highly probable. The sale is considered
highly probable only when the asset or disposal group is available forimmediate sale in its present condition, it is
unlikely that the sale will be withdrawn and sale is expected within one year from the date of the classification.
Disposal groups classified as held for sale are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell. Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are not depreciated or amortised once classified as held
for sale.

Assets and Liabilities classified as held for sale/distribution are presented separately in the balance sheet.
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If the criteria stated by IND AS 105 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale” are no longer met, the disposal group
ceases to be classified as held for sale. Non-current asset that ceases to be classified as held for sale are
measured at the lower of (i) its carrying amount before the asset was classified as held for sale, adjusted for
depreciation that would have been recognised had that asset not been classified as held for sale, and (ii) its
recoverable amount at the date when the disposal group ceases to be classified as held for sale.

Standard issued but not effective for the FY 2018-19

Ind AS 116 Leases: On March 30,2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 116, Leases. Ind AS
116will replace Ind AS 17 and related interpretations from its proposed effective date, being annual periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2019. The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases. Ind AS 116 requires the identification of leases and introduces a single
lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognized assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of
more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. The Standard also contains enhanced
disclosure requirements for lessees. The Company as a lessee, would be required to account for the assets on
lease and corresponding liability for all leases inits Balance Sheet
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS INCLUDING

DISCLOSURES

31. Contingent liability/Asset consists of amounts not provided for:

a. Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt Rs. Nil (Rs. Nil).

b. Total Direct Tax Disputed demands under appeal amounting to Rs.15,27,42,010/- (15,27,42,010/)

c. There are some cases relating to employees/other are pending in the court against the company in respect of
which the liability is not ascertainable.

d. Bank Guaranteeissued to clients/others:

Vi.

vil.

viii.

Xi.

Xii.

- 10th Annual Report | 2018-19

Bank Guarantee issued to Ministry of External Affairs for Project Management Consultancy Services of
Rs.2,27,70,000/- vide BG No 10B/LGI/040871217000019 dated 24.03.2017.

Bank Guarantee issued to Central Board of Secondary Education of Rs 10,00,000/- vide BG No
0408/I0B/LGI/71317000035 dated 22.09.2017

Bank Guarantee issued to Haryana Vishwakarma Skill University of Rs. 10,00,000/- vide BG No.
0408/10B/LGI/71217000064 dated 19.08.2017

Bank Guarantee issued to Haryana Vishwakarma Skill University of Rs. 22,40,500/- vide BG No
|0B/LGI/0408/71318000054 dated 20.09.2018

Bank Guarantee issued to Pay & Accounts officer (Sectt.) Ministry of Health & Family Affairs of Rs
50,00,000/- vide BG No I0B/LGI/0408/71218000011 dated 26.09.2018

Bank Guarantee issued to National Investigation Agency of Rs. 34,36,000/- vide BG No
|0B/LGI/0408/71319000009 dated 19.02.2019

Bank Guarantee issued to National Investigation Agency of Rs. 83,70,000/- vide BG No
|0B/LGI/0408/71319000010 dated 19.02.2019

Bank Guarantee issued to National Investigation Agency of Rs. 61,00,000/- vidle BG No
|0B/LGI/0408/71319000008 dated 19.02.2019

Bank Guarantee issued to Navodaya Vidyalaya Samiti of Rs 1,73,54,600/- vide BG No
|0B/LGI/0408/71117000036 dated 08.11.2017

Bank Guarantee issued to Navodaya Vidyalaya Samiti of Rs 1,55,04,500/- vidle BG No
I0B/LGI/0408/71217000074 dated 08.11.2017

Bank Guarantee issued to Haryana Vishwakarma Skill University of Rs. 37,37,500/- vide BG No.
0408/10B/LGI/71117000034 dated 08.11.2017

Bank Guarantee issued to Ministry of External Affairs of Rs. 36,00,625/- vide BG No
I0B/LGI/040871117000035 dated 08.11.2017
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Pension

In respect of Pension payable to regular employees of IrconISL, Policy of Ircon International Limited (Holding
Company) has been Adopted and accordingly Contributionin NPS Scheme of Pension is being made and deposited on
regular basis to the approved recognized fund.

Leave Encashment

In respect of encashment of leave, rules of Ircon International Limited (Holding Company) have been adopted,
therefore provision for leave encashment for regular employees of the company has been provided in the books on
accrual basis.

Provision as on 31st March 2019 in respect of Leave Encashment for Regular employees of the Company as per
actuarial valuation Ind AS-19is Rs 2,85,134 (FY 2017-18 Rs 1,54,417)

38. The Company has taken a loan of Rs. Nil (FY 17-18- Nil) from its Holding Company. During the year ended 31st
March 2019 a sum of Rs. Nil (as at 31st March 2018 Rs.22,92,00,000) have been repaid and Outstanding Loan
comes to Rs. Nil (as at 31st March 2018 Rs. Nil). Interest was paid on the loan for the period ended on 31st March
19isRs. Nil(F.Y 17-18Rs. 1,19,16,642).

39. a. Ministry of Railways vide railway Budget 2009-10 announced development of Multi-Functional Complexes
(MFC's) at identified sites to be undertaken by IRCON International limited (IRCON) and Rail Land Development
Authority (RLDA) jointly.

b.  Accordingly, Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) was signed on 21.8.2009 between IRCON and RLDA. In
terms of Memorandum of Understanding signed between IRCON and RLDA on 21st August 2009, the
development, operation and maintenance of the Multi-functional Complexes is to be done by wholly owned
subsidiary (WOS) of IRCON. Further, the lease agreement for the MFC's was signed between RLDA and WOS
i.e., Ircon Infrastructure and Services limited on 04-07-2013.

c. All the expenditure directly or indirectly relating to construction activity are capitalized and is valued at cost.
Indirect Expenditure /Incidental Expenditure during the construction period is capitalized as cost to the extent
to which the expenditure is directly related to construction or is incidental thereto.

d.  Allthe MFC Projects has been capitalized and all the operating expenses & interest on Loan has been charged to
the Profit & Loss Account during the year under consideration (which was earlier capitalized to various
projects).

e. Thecompany has Sub-leased 23 MFCs till date out of which 5 MFCsi.e. Mysore, Thiruvalla, Kannur, Rajgir and
Rampurathaat were terminated due to non- payment of dues.

f.  For the same, company has received/receivable one-time down payment and monthly rental from the Sub-
lessee. The total revenue recognize under lease is Rs. 17,78,57,517 (FY 17-18 Rs. 14,82,77,654). The one-
time down payment received | receivable from sub-lessee are recognized as income in the statement of profit
and loss on straight-line basis over the lease term on pro-rata basis.

40 As per Agreement between Ircon International Limited (IRCON) and Ircon Infrastructure & Services Limited
(IrconlISL) dated 01.04.2013, IrconISL has been awarded the work of “Supply of Manpower” to IRCON’s Malaysia
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Project on Man-day rate basis. The revenue from the same is Rs. 35,00,014 (F.Y 2017-18 Rs. 48,16,293).
Expenditure incurred on the sameis Rs. 13,08,988 (F.Y 17-18 Rs. 18,46,265).

As per Agreement between Ircon International Limited (IRCON) and Ircon Infrastructure & Services Limited
(IrconISL) dated 28.03.2019, IrconlSL has leased out “Duomatic Tamping Machine” to IRCON’s Jayanagar Nepal
Project on Hire Charges w.e.f. 28.05.2018. The revenue from the same is Rs. 88,91,667. Expenditure incurred on
the sameisRs. 1,03,06,413.

As per Agreement between Ircon International Limited (IRCON) and Ircon Infrastructure & Services Limited
(IrconISL) dated 26th March 2019, IrconISL has been awarded the work of “Supply of Manpower” to IRCON's
Algeria Project on Man-day rate basis w.e.f. 01.10.2017 The revenue from the same is Rs. 16,11,757 and
Reimbursement towards payment of salary i.e. Rs 14,20,463 Total Receivable from Algeria Project i.e. Rs
30,32,220/- Expenditure incurred on the same is Rs. 9,95,722/-.

As per Agreement between Ircon International Limited (IRCON) and Ircon Infrastructure & Services Limited
(IrconISL) dated 25th March 2019, IrconlSL has been awarded the work of “Supply of Manpower” to IRCON’s
Kolkata Region on Man-day rate basis w.e.f. 01.01.2019. The revenue from the same is Rs. 1,53,888. Expenditure
incurred on the sameis Rs.1,16,582/-.

The Holding company has handed over the possession of EMP Lab along with assets at Jammu to the company for
operation & Maintenance of EMP Lab. The revenue from the same is Rs. 3,35,500 (FY 2017-18 Rs. 66,275) The
Company hasincurred an expense of Rs. 6,78,122 (F.Y 2017-18 Rs. 9,68,315) on operation & Maintenance of EMP
Lab at Jammu during the year, which is charged to Profit & Loss account.

The company has secured and executed the work of construction of toilets block Swachh Bharat Abhiyan as Project
Management Consultants on cost plus basis from various clients. The revenue booked under these projects and CSR
work of various clients other than Ircon International Limited is Rs. 3,72,14,286 (F.Y 2017-18 Rs. 1,53,66,962).

New Project Secured During the Year 2018-19

a. As per Agreement between Container Corporation of India (CONCOR) and Ircon Infrastructure & Services
Limited (IrconISL) dated 11.06.2018, IrconISL has been awarded the work of Engagement of Consultant for
setting up a MMLP near Bhaupur on Eastern Dedicated Freight corridor (Gujarat).

b. As per Agreement between National Thermal Power Corporation (NTPC) and Ircon Infrastructure & Services
Limited (IrconISL) dated 26.07.2018, IrconISL has been awarded the work of Project Management and
Replacement of Sleepers with PRC Sleepers MGR System of Stage-1at NTPC Unchahar (Uttar Pradesh).

c. As per Agreement between Container Corporation of India (CONCOR) and Ircon Infrastructure & Services
Limited (IrconISL) dated 03.09.2018, IrconISL has been awarded the work of Engagement of Detailed
Engineering and Project Supervision for Setting up a MMLP Container Terminal at Dahej Near Ankleshwar
(Gujarat.).

d. As per Agreement between National Disaster Response Force (NDRF) and Ircon Infrastructure & Services
Limited (IrconISL) dated 16.11.2018, IrconISL has been awarded the work of Construction of infrastructure
works for NDRF Academy, Nagpur (Maharastra).

e. During the year, company has also secured Constructions of Toilets Blocks under Swachh Bharat Abhiyan
Projects from Power grid Corporation of India (PGCIL).
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The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

i.  The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, cash and cash equivalents and other short-term
receivables and payables are considered to the same as their fair values, due to short term nature.

ii.  Long term financial assets & liabilities are evaluated by company on parameters such as interest rates,
specific country risk factors and other risk factors. Based on this evaluation the fair value of such financial
instruments are not materially different from their carrying amount.

Fair value hierarchy
Level 1- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. Derived from prices).

Level 3- Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
Financial Risk Management

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise Trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial
liabilities is to finance the company’s operations and to provide guarantees to support its operation. The Company's
principal financial assets include trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from
its operations.

The Company is expose to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The company financial risk activities are
governed by appropriated policies and procedures and that financial risk are identified, measured and managed in
accordance with the company’s policies and risk objectives. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks, which are summarized below: -

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instruments will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. Market risk comprises Interest rate risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk
includes loans and borrowing, deposits and other non-derivative financial instruments.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instruments will fluctuate because
of change in market interest rate. The company manages its interest risk in accordance with the company’s policies
and risk objective.

Creditrisk

The Company’s customer profile includes Ministry of External Affairs, Ministry of Home Affairs, Public Sector
Enterprises, State Owned Companies in India. Accordingly, the Company’s customer credit risk is low. The
Company's average project execution cycle is around 15 to 24 months. General payment terms include mobilization
advance, monthly progress payments with a credit period ranging from 45 to 60 days and certain retention money to
be released at the end of the project. In some cases, retentions are substituted with bank | corporate guarantees.
The Company has a detailed review mechanism of overdue customer receivables at various levels within
organization to ensure proper attention and focus for realization.
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a  Fairvaluation measurementand valuation process
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are measured using the valuation techniques including DCF
model. The inputs to these methods are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this it is not
feasible, a degree of judgement is required in arriving at fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs
such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported
fair value of financial instruments.

b  Taxes
Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
losses can be utilized significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax asset
that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profit together with future tax
planning strategies.

c Revenue Recognition
Revenue From contract with Customer is recognized when control of the goods or services are transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services.
Revenue from Contract with Customers is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Company and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably.

59 Events Occurring after the Reporting date: - Events occurring after the Balance sheet date has been taken into
cognizance.

60 Certain prior periods amounts have been reclassified for consistency with the current period presentations. These
reclassifications have no effect on the reported results of operations.

61 Approval of financial statement
The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 21st May 2019.

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

CA Tarun Kapoor Pooja Chaurasia Rana Pratap Singh Manisha Gola

(Partner) C.F.0 C.E.0 Co Secy

M. No. 095949

Sd/- Sd/-
Surajit Dutta M.K.Singh
Place : New Delhi Director Chairman
Date :21-05-2019 (DIN-06687032) (DIN-06607392)

10th Annual Report | 2018—19-






Aaditor's Report






Y77/ 4

INFRA & SERVICES

REVISED INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
Ircon Infrastructure & Services Limited
New Delhi

REPORT ONTHE AUDIT OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of M/s Ircon Infrastructure & Services Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of cash flow for the year ended on that
date, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

This report, revised consequent upon observations of comptroller of Auditor General of India during the course of audit u/s.
139(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) for the year ended on 31/03/2019, supersedes our earlier report dated
23/05/2019 U/s 143 of the Companies Act, 2013.

OPINION

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, and accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2019, the Profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the
year ended on that date.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified
under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together
with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules made there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs(financial position), profit and loss (financial performance including other comprehensive income), cash
flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, as amended.
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This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind
AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e I|dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  (btain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

OTHERMATTERS

We Draw your attention to the mismatch in figures reported in returns of Goods & services Tax for the state of Delhi and
Jammu & Kashmir, the liability arising due to short credit claimed and short liability disclosed.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
REPORT ONOTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order,2016("“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India
in terms of sub section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013. We give in the Annexure A statements on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order, to the extent applicable.

2. The Comptroller and Auditor General of India has issued directions indicating the areas to be examined in terms of
sub section (5) of Section 143 of the Companies Act 2013, the compliance of whichis set outin “Annexure B".

3. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b)  Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, statement of changes in equity & the cash flow
statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d)  Inour opinion, the aforesaid Standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e)  Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2019, taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as March 31, 2019, from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.
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(f)  Withrespect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in "Annexure C".

(g  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Standalone
financial statements. (Refer Note No.30 to the financial statements)

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law and did not have any long-term
contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There has not been an occasion in case of the Company during the year under report to transfer any sums
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund. The question of delay in transferring such sums does not
arise.

FOR KAPOOR GOYAL & CO Reg No. :001370N
(Chartered Accountants)

Sd/-
CA Tarun Kapoor (Partner)
M.No.: 095949

Place : New Delhi
Date : 24/06/2019

- 10th Annual Report | 2018-19




Y77/ 4

INFRA & SERVICES

Annexure A

Reports under The Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (CARO

To,

2016) for the year ended on 31st March 2019

The Members of Ircon Infrastructure & Services Limited

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

\')

In Respect of Fixed Assets

(a) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and situation
of fixed assets.

(b) As explained to us, fixed assets, according to the practice of the Company, are physically verified by the
management at reasonable intervals, in a phased verification programme, which in our opinion, is reasonable,
looking to the size of the company and the nature of its business. No material discrepancies were noticed on
such verifications

(c) Thetitle of deeds of immoveable properties are held in the name of the company.
In Respect of Inventories

As explained to us, the inventory of Consumable & Stationery has been physically verified at reasonable intervals
during the year by the management. In our opinion, the frequency of verification s reasonable.

Compliance under section 189 of The Companies Act, 2013

According to information and explanation given to us by the management and records produced, the company had
not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to any companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties
covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act. Thus, clause (iii) (a), (iii) (b), (iii) (c) of paragraph 3 of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

Compliance under section 185 and 186 of The Companies Act, 2013

In respect of loans, investments, guarantees and security the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 have been complied with.

Compliance under section 73 to 76 of The Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed there under while
accepting Deposits

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits in contravention of Directives issued by Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of section 73 to 76 or any
other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there under, where applicable. No order has been passed by
the Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any court or any other
tribunal.

Maintenance of cost records

To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost
records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the products of the company.
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(xiii) Related party compliance with Section 177 and 188 of companies Act-2013

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

Yes, All transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013
where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements etc., as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

Compliance under section 42 of Companies Act - 2013 regarding Private placement of Shares or
Debentures

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible
debentures during the year.

Compliance under section 192 of Companies Act- 2013

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.

Requirement of Registration under 45-1A of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be registered under
Section45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

FOR KAPOOR GOYAL & CO
(Chartered Accountants)
Reg No.: 001370N

Sd/-

CA Tarun Kapoor
(Partner)

Membership No: 095949

Place : New Delhi
Date : 24/06/2019
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As required by Section 143(5) of the Act and as per directions issued by
Comptroller and Auditor General of India, we report on following that:

126




Y77/ 4

INFRA & SERVICES

Annexure C to the Independent Auditor's Report referred to in paragraph 3(f) under
the heading 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date to the members of Ircon Infrastructure & Services Limited
Company limited on the Standalone financial statements for the financial year ended
on 31stMarch 2019

Report on the Internal Financial Control under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Ircon Infrastructure & Services Limited Company
limited(“the Company”) as on 31st March 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the
company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to
an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in allmaterial respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the Standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

10th Annual Report | 2018-19-




Y77,/ 4

INFRA & SERVICES

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Standalone financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could
have a material effect on the Ind AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2019,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For KAPOOR GOYAL & CO.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 001370N

Sd/-

CA Tarun Kapoor

Place: New Delhi Partner
Dated: 24/06/2019 M. No.: 095949
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION 143(6)
() OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF IRCON
INFRASTRUCTURE AND SERVICES LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019.

The preparation of financial statements of IRCON INFRASTRUCTURE AND SERVICES LIMITED for the period ended
31March 2019 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 is the
responsibility of the management of the company. The Statutory Auditors appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor
General of India under Section139 (5) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements under
Section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under section
143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Revised Audit Report dated 24.06.2019 which
supersedes their earlier Audit Report dated 21.05.2019..

|, on the behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a supplementary audit of the financial
statements of IRCON INFRASTRUCTURE & SERVICES LIMITED for the period ended 31 March 2019 under section
143(6)(a) of the Act. This supplementary audit has been carried out independently without access to the working papers of
the statutory auditors and is limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditors and company personnel and a selective
examination of some of the accounting records.

On the basis of my supplementary audit nothing significant has come to my knowledge which would give rise to any
comment upon or supplement to statutory auditors’ report under section 143 (6) (b) of the Act.

For and on the behalf of the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India

Sd/-

(B.R. Mondal)

Place: New Delhi Principal Director of Audit
Date: 2" August 2019 Railway Commercial, New Delhi
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ON INFRASTRUCTURE & SERVICE LIMITED

wholly owned subsidiary of Ircon International Limited)
C-4, District Centre, Saket, New Delhi - 110017, India

Tel. : +91-29565666 Fax : +91-11-126854000, 265522000,

E-mail : Info@irconsil.com | Web: www.irconisl.com
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